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FBN Holdings Plc.

INCOME STATEMENT

Continuing operations
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Impairment charge for credit losses

Net interest income after impairment charge for credit losses
Insurance premium revenue

Insurance premium revenue ceded to reinsurers

Net insurance premium revenue

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net gains on foreign exchange

Net gains on investment securities

Net gains/(losses) from financial instruments at FVTPL
Dividend income

Other operating income

Insurance claims

Personnel expenses

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Operating expenses

Operating profit
Share of profit of associates

Profit before tax
income tax expense

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

Discontinued operations
Loss for the period from discontinued operations

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD
Profit attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent

Basic/diluted earnings per share (expressed in naira per share):

From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
From profit for the period

Note

10
11
12

13

14

38

GROUP
Quarter ended Year to date Quarter ended Year to date
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2017 2016 2016
N 'million N ‘million N 'million N ‘miltion
123,698 356,076 109,376 278,577
(33,438) (101,731) (32,515) (75,666)
90,260 254,345 76,861 202,911
(35,180) (97,588) (44,802) (114,717)
55,080 156,757 32,058 88,194
3,326 10,523 3,608 7,656
(782) (2,470) (271) (807)
2,544 8,053 3,337 6,849
17,521 54,283 17,993 52,702
(3,181) (9,087) (3,091) (7,745)
594 5,602 15,486 68,401
1,004 835 (589) 4,402
2,644 8,598 3,069 3,292
160 1,986 73 846
2,142 3,495 692 2,283
(984) (2,531) (1,693) {2,858)
(21,059) (63,059) (22,625) (65,391)
(3,894) (11,581) (3,780) (11,021
(32,827) (98,174) (29,360) (82,499)
19,744 55,177 11,570 57,455
62 256 - -
19,806 55,433 11,570 57,455
(3,452) (9,594) (4,907) (14,938)
16,354 45,839 6,663 42,517
(289) (837) - .
16,065 45,002 6,663 42,517
15,465 44,157 6,617 41,970
600 845 46 547
16,065 45,002 6,663 42,517
1.25 1.17
— (002 -
1,22 1.17




FBN Holdings Pic.

INCOME STATEMENT

Continuing operations
Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Impairment charge for credit losses

Net interest income after impairment charge for credit losses

insurance premium revenue
Insurance premium revenue ceded to reinsurers

Net insurance premium revenue

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission expense

Net gains on foreign exchange

Net gains/(losses) on investment securities
Dividend income

Other operating income

Insurance claims

Personnel expenses

Depreciation, amoriisation and impairment
Operating expenses

L.oss before tax

Income tax expense

LOSS FOR THE PERIOD FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS

L.OSS FOR THE PERIOD
L.oss attributable to:

Owners of the parent
Non-controfling interests

Earnings per share attributable to owners of the parent

Basic/diluted earnings per share (expressed in naira per share):

From continuing operations
From discontinued operations
From loss for the period

Note

w

10
12

13

38

COMPANY

Quarter ended  Year to date Quarter ended ~ Year to date
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2017 2016 2016
N 'million N 'million N 'million N 'million
536 1,681 217 541

536 1,681 217 541

536 1,681 217 541
- 8 16 110
8 15 (14) (12)
. - - 1,259
8 29 10 26
{126) (387) (147) (390)
(99) (297) (95) (281)
(689) (1,829) (819) (1,713)
(363) (780) (832) (460)
(13) (40) - (20}
(376) (820) (832) (480)
(376) (820) (832) (480)
(376) (820) (832) (480)
(376) (820) (832) (480)
(0.02) (0.01)

0.02 0.01



FBN Holdings Plc.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Note

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

QOther comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Net gains/(losses) on available-for-sale financial assets
-Unrealised net gains/(losses) arising during the period
Exchange difference on translation of foreign operations

items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Share of other comprehensive income of associates

Other comprehensive income for the period

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent
Non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
parent arises from :

Continuing operations

Discontinued operations

GROUP

Quarter ended  Yeartodate Quarterended  Year to date
30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2017 2016 2016

N 'million N ‘million N ‘million N 'million
16,065 45,002 6,663 42,517

4,764 6,782 (3,904) (32,913)

965 4,624 9,944 41,998

(55) (58) - .

5,674 11,351 6,040 9,085

21,739 56,353 12,703 51,602

20,887 55,171 12,733 52,662

852 1,182 (30) (1,060)

21,739 56,353 12,703 51,602

21,176 56,009 12,733 52,662

(289) (837) - -

20,887 55,171 12,733 52,662




FBN Holdings Plc.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME COMPANY
Quarter ended Year to date Quarter ended Year to date

30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September

Note 2017 2017 2016 2016
N 'million N "million N 'million N 'million
LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (376) (820) (832) (480)

Other comprehensive income:
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Net (losses)/gains on available-for-sale financial assets

-Unrealised net (losses)/gains arising during the period 16 26 7 (27)
Other comprehensive income for the period 16 26 (7) (27)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (360) (794) (839) (507)

Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent (360) (794) (839) (507)
Non-controlling interests - - - -

(360) (794) (839) (507)
Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the
parent arises from:
Continuing operations (360) (794) (839) (507)
Discontinued operations 23 - - - -
(360) (794) (839) (507)




FBN Holdings Plc.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ASSETS

Cash and balances with ceniral banks

Loans and advances to banks

L.oans and advances to customers

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investment securities
-Available-for-sale investments
-Held to maturity investments
-Loans and receivables

Asset pledged as collateral

Other assets

investment properties

Investments in associales accounted for using the equity method

Investment in subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Asset held for sale
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from banks

Deposits from customers

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Current income tax liability

Other liabilities

Liability on investment contracts

Liability on insurance contracts

Borrowings

Retirement benefit obligations

Deferred tax liabilities

Liabilities held for sale
Totat liabilities

EQUITY

Share capital

Share premium

Retained eamings

Other reserves
Statutory reserve
Capital reserve
SS1 Reserve
AFS Fair value reserve
Contingency Reserve
Statutory credit reserve
Foreign currency franslation reserve

Non-controlling interest

Total equity

Total equity and labilities

GROUP COMPANY
30 September 31 December 30 September 31 December
Note 2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'million N 'miltion N ‘million N ‘miflion
15 577,084 690,165 - -
17 631,461 444,871 4,677 645
18 2,043,915 2,083,894 136 65
19 39,602 46,711 - -
20 1,124,999 921,753 10,215 12,350
20 100,241 108,479 - -
13,789 20,356 - -
21 98,066 197,420 - -
26 64,231 47,786 299 10,599
27 3,003 3,003 - -
23 1,318 1,114 - -
22 - - 242,395 242,395
24 84,119 88,315 665 849
25 15,119 15,328 - -
17,556 17,278 - -
4,814,500 4,686,473 258,387 266,903
49,411 50,332 - -
4,863,911 4,736,805 258,387 266,903
28 606,673 416,078 - -
29 2,938,451 3,104,221 - -
6,721 37,137 - -
14 10,203 8,897 37 84
32 225,450 235,388 6,618 7,114
33 12,006 9,440 - -
17,411 10,287 - -
30 398,877 316,792 - -
31 3,269 2,662 - -
1,079 813 - -
4,220,140 4,141,715 6,655 7,198
12,720 12,515 - -
4,232,860 4,154,230 6,655 7,198
34 17,948 17,948 17,948 17,948
35 233,302 233,392 233,392 233,392
35 196,156 161,631 9 8,008
35 76,238 76,226 - -
35 1,223 1,223 10 10
35 8,591 6,076 - -
35 33,897 27,507 373 347
35 968 727 - -
35 23,640 23,640 - -
35 39,377 34,753 - -
631,430 583,123 251,732 259,705
(379) (548) - -
631,051 582,575 251,732 259,705
4,863,911 4,736,805 258,387 266,903

The unaudited consolidated interim financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 24 October 2017 and signed on its

behalf by:

. K. EKE, MFR
Group Managing Directo
FRCI2013/ICAN/O0000002352

OYEWALE ARIYIBI
Chief Financial Officer
FRC/2013/ICAN/00000001251



160'1e9  (6.¢) 0EP'le9  L1/£'68 org'ez 896 188'ce 166'8 8€2'0L €221 951961 26E'E£2 8va'LL 2102 tequieydas og Y

(818'2) (£10'}) (598'9) - - 344 - S16'C [4) - (2£9'6) - - SIBUMQ YiIm suofidesuely (B30 )

) ©) - E X% - cise [ - (80L72) - - SOAIBSDS UBBMIB] JBJSURLY

(119) (5z6) sie - - - - - - - sie - - isassjul Quouw Jo jesodsiq

(goz's)  (o8) 624'2) - - - - - - - (8L1'D) - - pied puaping

SIBUMO LM SUOIORSURI|

2SE'98 z8l'y 041'SS ¥29'y - - 06€'9 - - L51'py - - awoou) saisuayalduton g0l

12l'9 PA% 06¢€'9 - - - 06€'9 - - - - - - BSSe j_IoUBUY S{BS 10 B|GEJIEAR UO SJUDLILISAOLL aNjeA Jig

$29'y - 2o’y y2o'y - - - - - - - - - XE} jO JBU 'sadualayp uohejsurly Aousuno ubleiod
8woous aAlsuayerdwiod JeyiQ

L00'sY Gv8 AT 44 - - - - - - - LSL'vY - - pouad auyy Joj Jjoid

615285 (8tg) £TL'E8S  £6L'vE 0v9'ee 2L 10822 9.0'9 9Z2'9L €zz'L 1€9°191 z6e'eee 8ve'LlL 110z Atenuer | je eduejeg

819'vZ9 512'2 £0¥'229  £20'0§ Sy £89 GE6'v2 9L0'9 Ly9'L9 gee'l 02L'612 Z6E'CET  8¥6'LL 9102 sequinydasg ¢ 3V

(r82's) (ooy) (rge's) - 61€'7 Sve - - 000'} - z55'01 (oog'sl) - SIBUMQ UIIM SUORDESURS [BJ0L

- - - - 612 spe - - 000'4 - (y95°¢) - - SOAISSII UBIMIB] SoJSURI ]

- - - - - - - - - - 005'61 (oog'6L) - JUSUISaAUI JO 14O BIIM

({19} (sp) - - - - - - - - - - - sabueyo JsYio

(68L'S) (gge) (p8g's) - - - - - - - (#8£'s) - - puaping

SIBUMO YIIM SUOHDESURS

20915 (0g0't) 299'2¢ 866'L¥ - - (goe'1e) - - - 046'i¥ - - awooul aAsuayaidwo jgjo g

(ete'ze)  (L09°1) (sog™1e) - - - (oog'te) - - - - - - 2sSE (BUBUY SBS JO) B|RIIBAR UO SJUSWISACUI SNfEA JiB Y

266'tY - 866°LY 966'LY - - - - - - - - - XE} JO JaU 'Saouasayip uoyeisues) Aousuno ubialod
swoou] aAjsuayaidutod Jaio

Lig'ey A4 0.6’y - - - - - - - 0L6'LYy - - pouad auj 4o} 1oid

008'8L5 GL9'¢ SZL'GLS  620'8 eEV'Z 8ey L9298 8L0'9 L19'99 €22} 861'€91 268252 8v6'LL 810z Aienuep | je eouejeg

UOHIHU, N UOJjIuIL N UONjjWi, N  Uoljjiw, N  uojjiiu, N  uojjiiw, N UOIjiul, N UOJIfW, N uolijlw, N UOJliiu, N UOHIljW, N  UOHW, N  uoljjiui, N

Aynba FEETETT jejo} L4 EYYEREY) EIVETTY] anIosal ETNEEEY anjasal EYNEEEY] sbujusea wnjwaad  jepdes

fejol Bujionuoa upao AouaBupuod  anjea 188 Aoyeis  jeyden paujeiay aseys aleys

-UoN fioymeyg dieg S Ay

wased at jo s1apjoy Ainba o} ajqeinquny

ALINDA NI SIONVHO 40 IN3W3LVYLS G3LVAITOSNOD
"0id sBulplOM NEd



zeL'L6e AN ]2 6 ZBE'EEC  8¥6'LL 2102 19quuaidag 0¢ IV
{641’ - - 8212 - - S18UMQ UJIM SUOIIJESURS] [B}O)
(621') - - (621'2) - - SspuspiAlg
SJOUMO H}IM SUOIJOBSURL]
(¢62) 92 - (0z8) - - awooul anIsuayaldwos g0
9¢ 92 - - - - sjosse jeoueuly Anba Uo sjuswaAoW aNjeA Jied
awodu] aarsusyalrdwos 19Yj0
(0z8) - - (0ze) - - pouad ay} 10} 1j0id
G0.'652 LyE oL 800'8 Z6e'eee  8v6'Ll 2107 Asenuer | Je souejeg
889'L6¢ 8ie ol X4 ZBE'EEC  8¥6'LL 910z Joquadag 0¢ IV
(ye8've) - - (vee's)  (oos'sl) - SIBUMQ YliM suoljoesues [ejo)
{vae's) - - (rge's) - - spuaping
(00s'61) (cog'sl) - JUBLISBAUL JO O BJLIAA
SI9UMO Y}IM SUOfjOeSURI ]
(208) (£2) - (osp) - - awoouy aaIsuayasdwos ejot
(L2) (22) - -

- - sjesse jeioueuy Anbs uo SjUBWBAOW aN[eA Jied
swoout aAaisusyaidwos JayQ

{o8Y) - - (o8v) - - pouad ay} 10} J1j0id
080'2.2 114 *13 G88'S 268'26Z  8¥6'lL 910z Auenuep | je aouejeg
uofjjiui, N uoljpiui, N uoljiiui, N uolfjis, N uofjjiw, N  uofjiu, N

€101 oAlosol aalesel  sbujuies  wnweid  jejdeo

enjeA ed s4v  feyded  poupjoy  oleyg aseyg
juaased ays jo
slapjoy Aunbe o sjqelnquyy ALINDA NI STONVHO 40 ININWILVLS ANV4INOD
"0ld sBuIpjoH N4




FBN Holdings Plc.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Cash flow used in operations
Income taxes paid

Interest received

Interest paid

Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) operating activities

Investing activities

Disposal of subsidiaries

Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from the sale of investment securities
Dividends received

Proceeds from the disposal of investment property
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flow (used in)/ generated from investing activities
Financing activities

Dividend paid

Proceeds from new borrowings

Repayment of borrowings

Interest paid on borrowings
Transactions with NCI

Net cash flow generated from/ (used in) financing activities

Increasel (Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at start of period

Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

GROUP COMPANY
Note 30 September 30 September 30 September 30 September
2017 2016 2017 2016
N 'million N 'million N ‘million N 'miltion
36 155,687 189,955 (2,818) (1,195)
(9,436) (6,522) (88) (20)
351,855 278,577 1,591 392
(83,700) (61,804) - -
414,406 400,206 (1,315) (823)
- - - 3,420
(282,847) (446,365) (9,683) (11,817)
118,257 106,617 11,919 8,808
1,986 846 10,404 2,259

- 42

(4,847) (6,793) (114) (38)
(2,419) (5,619) - -
183 507 - -
(169,687) (350,765) 12,526 2,632
(7,268) (5,739) (7,179) (5,384)
87,187 20,255 - -
(4,258) 28,970 - .
(16,857) (13,862) - -
(611) (45) - -
58,195 29,579 (7,179) (5,384)
302,914 79,020 4,032 (3,575)
746,231 666,368 645 4,792
1,034 7,678 - -
16 1,050,179 753,066 4,677 1,218




FBN Holdings Plc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

1

2.1

2.2

0

(i}

(i)

(iv)

222

General information

These financial statements are the consolidated financial statements of FBN Holdings Pic. (the Company), and its subsidiaries
(hereafter referred to as 'the Group"). The Registered office address of the Company is at 35 Marina, Samuel Asabia House, Lagos,

Nigeria.

The principal activities of the Group are mainly the provision of commercial banking services, merchant banking and asset
ranagement services, insurance business services and provision of other financial services and corporate banking.

The unaudited consolidated financia! statements for the year ended 30 September 2017 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 24 October 2017.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of separate and consolidated financial statements of the parent and the
Group are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the pericds presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the period ended 30 September 2017 have been prepared in accordance with
international Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and with the
applicable interpretations — International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) and Standard Interpretation
Commitiee (SIC) as issued by IFRS Interpretation Committee. Additional information required by national regulations is included

where appropriate.

The consolidated financial statements comprise the income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement of financial
position, the statement of changes in equity, statement of cash flows and the related notes for the Group and the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the going concern principle under the historical cost
convention, modified to include fair valuation of particular financial instruments, fo the extent required or permitted under IFRS as set
out in the relevant accounting policies.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of cerain critical accounting
estimates, It also requires directors to exercise judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. Changes in
assumptions may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements in the period the assumptions changed.

The Directors believe that the underlying assumptions are appropriate and that the Group's financial statements therefore present the
financial position and results fairly. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
New and amended standards adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following standards and amendment for the first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1
January 2017.

Amendments to IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures {effective 1 July 2018}

Amends IFRS 7 to remove the phrase 'and interim periods within those annual periods’ from paragraph 44R, clarifying that offsetting
disclosures is not required in the condensed interim financial report . However, if the IFRS 7 disclosures provide a significant update
to the information reported in the most recent annual report, an entity is required to include the disclosures in the condensed interim
financial report.

On servicing contract, it clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a fee can constitute continuing involvernent in a financial
asset. An entity must assess the nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance for continuing involvement in paragraphs
IFRS 7.B30 and IFRS 7.42C in order to assess whether the disclosures are required.

Amendments to IAS 19 - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions {effective 1 July 2016)

Amends IAS 19 to clarify that high quality corporate bonds used in estimating the discount rate for post employment benefits should
be denominated in the same currency as the benefits to be paid (thus, the depth of the market for high quality corporate bonds
should be assessed at currency level).

Amendments to IAS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting (effective 1 July 20186)

Amends IAS 34 to clarify that the required interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by
cross reference between the financial statements and wherever they are included within the greater interim financial report (e.g.
management commentary or risk report).

Amendments to IFRS 5 - Non Current Asset Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations (effective 1 July 2016}

Amends IFRS 5 with specific guidance on changes in disposal methods, for cases in which an entity reclassifies an asset from held
for sale to held for distribution or vice versa and cases for which held for distribution accounting is discontinued. The amendment
clarifies that changing from one of these disposal methods to the other should not be considered to be a new disposal plan, rather it

is a continuation of the original plan.
New standards, interpretations and amendments to existing standards that are not yet effective

A number of new standards, interpretations and amendments thereto, had been issued by IASB which are not yet effective, and have
not been applied in preparing these consolidated financial statements. The following new standards, interpretations and amendments
to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Group's accounting periods beginning after 1 January 2017.



FBN Holdings Pic.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

)

(i)

(iii)

23

{FRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2018}

IFRS 15 provides a single, principles based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers. The five steps in the model
are Identification of the contract with the customer, Identification of the performance obligations in the contract, Determination of the
transaction price, Allocation of the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contracts, and Recognition of revenue when
(or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.

IFRS 9 - Financial instruments (1 January 2018)
IFRS 9 is part of the IASB's project to repiace IAS 39. It addresses classification, measurement and impairment of financial assets as

well as hedge accounting.

IFRS 9 replaces the muitiple classification and measurement models in IAS 38 with a single model that has only three classification
categories: amortised cost, fair value through OCH and fair value through profit or loss. It includes the guidance on accounting for and
presentation of financial liabilities and derecognition of financial instruments which was previously in IAS 39. Furthermore for non-
derivative financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, it requires that the credit risk component of fair value gains
and losses be separated and included in OCl rather than in the income statement.

IFRS 9 also requires that credit losses expected at the balance sheet date (rather than only losses incurred in the year) on loans,
debt securities and loan commitments not held at fair value through profit or loss be reflected in impairment allowances. The bank is
yet to quantify the impact of this change although it is expected to lead to an increased impairment charge than recognized under IAS

39,

Furthermore, the JASB has amended IFRS 9 to align hedge accounting more closely with an entity's risk management. The revised
standard establishes a more principles-based approach to hedge accounting and addresses inconsistencies and weaknesses in the
current model in IAS 39, The bank is yet to quantity the impact of these changes on its financial statements.

IFRS 16 — Leases (effective 1 January 2018)
IFRS 16 has been issued to replace IAS 17.

IFRS 186 provides a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases unless term is
12 months or less or the underlying asset has a low value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with IFRS 16's
approach to lessor accounting substantially unchanged from 1AS 17.

The Group is yet to assess the full impact of the amendments and new standards.
Consolidation

The financial statements of the consolidated subsidiaries used to prepare the consolidated financial statements were prepared as of
the parent company’s reporting date.

Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the group has control. The group controls an entity when the
group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the group. They
are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The assessment of control is based on the consideration of all facts and circumstances. The Group reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if fact and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the elements of control.

Investment in subsidiaries is measured at cost in the separate financial statements of the parent.

The group applies the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the group.

The consideration transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. The group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable
net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date carrying
value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any gains or
losses arising from such re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent changes to
the fair value of the contingent consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance with IAS 39 either
in profit or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.

Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not re-measured, and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration iransferred, non-controlling interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the fair
value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
income statement.
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2.5

2.6

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
Josses are also eliminated. Where necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the group’s

accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in loss of contro! are accounted for as equity transactions — that is, as
transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the relevant
share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to non-
controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the group ceases to have control, any retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to

profit or loss.

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the group has significant influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of

between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in associates is measured at cost in the separate financial statements of the
investor. Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting in the Consclidated Financial
Statements of the Group. Under the equity method, the investment is initially recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is
increased or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.

The group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

if the ownership interest in an asscciate is reduced but significant influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that the investment in an associate is impaired.
if this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate
and its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent to share of profit/(loss) of associates in the income statement.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the Group Executive Committee.

All transactions between business segments are conducted at arm'’s length, with inter-segment revenue and expenditure eliminated
at the Group. Income and expenses directly associated with each segment is included in determining the segment’s performance.

Common controf transactions

A business combination involving entities or businesses under common control is excluded from the scope of IFRS 3: Business
Combinations. The exemption is applicable where the combining entities or businesses are controlled by the same party both before
and after the combination. Where such transactions occur, the Group, in accordance with IAS 8, uses its judgment in developing and
applying an accounting policy that is relevant and reliable. in making this judgment, directors consider the requirements of IFRS
dealing with similar and related issues and the definitions, recognition criteria and measurement concepts for assets, liabilities,
income and expenses in the framework.

Directors also consider the most recent pronouncements of other standard setting bodies that use a similar conceptual framework to
develop accounting standards, to the extent that these do not conflict with the IFRS Framework or any other IFRS or interpretation.

Accordingly, the Group's policy is that the assets and liabilities of the business transferred are measured at their existing book value
in the consolidated financial statements of the parent, as measured under IFRS. The Company incorporates the results of the
acquired businesses only from the date on which the business combination occurs.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic

environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Nigerian Naira which is the group's presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where items are re- measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement.
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Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as available for sale are analysed
between translation differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount
of the security. Translation differences related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in
carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets, such as
equities classified as available for sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the group entities which have functional currency different from the Group's presentation

currency, are translated into the Group's presentation currency as follows:
- assets and liabilities of each foreign operation are translated at the rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date;

- income and expenses of each foreign operation are translated at the average exchange rate for the period, unless this average is
not a reasonable approximation of the rate prevailing on transaction date, in which case income and expenses are transiated at the
exchange rate ruling at transaction date; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate . Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income taxation

Current income tax

Income tax payable is calculated on the basis of the applicable tax law in the respective jurisdiction and is recognised as an expense
(income) for the period except to the extent that current tax related to items that are charged or credited in other comprehensive
income or directly to equity. In these circumstances, current tax is charged or credited to other comprehensive income or to equity
(for example, current tax on equity instruments for which the entity has elected to present gains and losses in other comprehensive

income).

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill; deferred tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is realised or the deferred tax liability is settied.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements, except for deferred tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the group
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
same taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset when they arise in the same tax reporting group and where there is both the legal
right and the intention to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

inventories

The Group purchases and constructs properties for resale.

The Group recognises Property as inventory under the following circumstances:

i. property purchased for the specific purpose of resale

ii. property constructed for the specific purpose of resale (work in progress under the scope of IAS 18, '‘Revenue’)

iii. property transferred from investment property to inventories. This is permitted when the Group commences the property's
development with a view to sale.
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They are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where appropriate, labour and
production overheads which have been incurred in bringing the inventories and work in progress to their present location and
condition. Cost is determined using weighted average cost. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less estimated
costs to completion and costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution.

Financial assets and liabilities

In accordance with IAS 39, all financial assets and liabilities ~ which include derivative financial instruments —~ have to be recognised
in the statement of financial position and measured in accordance with their assigned category.

Financial assets

The Group aliocates financial assets to the following IAS 38 categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and
receivables; held-to-maturity investments; and available-for-sale financial assets. Directors determine the classification of its financial

instruments at initial recognition.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of seliing or repurchasing it in
the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated
and effective as hedging instruments. Financial assets held for trading consist of debt instruments, including money-market paper,
traded corporate and bank loans, and equity instruments, as wel! as financial assets with embedded derivatives.

Financial instruments included in this category are recognised initially at fair value; transaction costs are taken directly to profit or
toss. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are included directly in the income statement and are reported as ‘Net
gains/(losses) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss’. Interest income and expense and dividend income on
financial assets held for trading are included in ‘Net interest income’ or ‘Dividend income’ respectively.

The instruments are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows have expired or the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership and the transfer qualifies for derecognising.

Loans and receivables
.oans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active

market, other than:

i. those that the Group intends to sell immediately or in the short term, which are classified as held for trading, and those that the
entity upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;

ii. those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as available for sale; or

iit. those for which the holder may not recover substantially alf of its initial investment, other than because of credit deterioration.

Loans and receivables are initially recognised at fair value — which is the cash consideration to originate or purchase the loan
including any transaction costs — and measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Loans and
receivables are reported in the statement of financial position as loans and advances to banks or customers or other assets and cash
balances. interest on loans is included in the profit or loss and is reported as ‘Interest income’.

In the case of an impairment, the impairment loss is reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the loan and recognised in the
profit or loss as ‘impairment charge for credit losses’.

Held-to-maturity financial assets
Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the

Group's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity, other than:

i. those that the Group upon initial recognition designates as at fair value through profit or loss;
ii. those that the Group designates as available for sale; and
iii. those that meet the definition of loans and receivables.

These are initially recognised at fair value including direct and incremental transaction costs and measured subsequently at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Interest on held-to-maturity investments is included in the income statement and reported as ‘Interest income’. In the case of an
impairment, the impairment loss has been reported as a deduction from the carrying value of the investment and recognised in the
income statement as ‘Net gains/(losses) on investment securities’,

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale investments are financial assets that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange rates or equity prices or that are not classified as loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity investments or financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which is the cash consideration including any transaction
costs, and measured subsequently at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in other comprehensive income, except for
impairment losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognised. If an available-for-sale financial
asset is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other omprehensive income is recognised in
the income statement.
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However, interest is calculated using the effective interest method, and foreign currency gains and losses on non-monetary assets
classified as available for sale are recognised in other comprehensive income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are
recognised in the income statement in ‘dividend income’ when the Group's right to receive payment is established.

Recognition

The Group uses settiement date accounting for regular way contracts when recording financial asset transactions. Financial assets
that are transferred to a third party but do not qualify for derecognition are presented in the statement of financial position as ‘Assets
pledged as collateral’, if the transferee has the right to sell or repledge them.

Financial liabilities

The Group's holding in financial liabilities is in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and financial liabilities at amortised
cost. Financial liabilities are derecognised when extinguished.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are financial liabilities held for trading.

A financial fiability is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose gf selling or repurchasing it in
the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking.

Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated and effective as hedging instruments. Financial
liabiliies held for trading also include obligations to deliver financial assets borrowed by a short seller.

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of financial liabilities classified held for trading are included in the income
statement and are reported as ‘Net gains/ (losses) on financial instruments classified as held for trading’. Interest expenses on
financial liabilities held for trading are included in ‘Net interest income’.

Other liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not classified at fair value through profit or loss fall into this category and are measured at amortised cost.
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are deposits from banks or customers, debt securities in issue for which the fair value
option is not applied, convertible bonds and subordinated debts.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include swaps, forward rate agreements, futures, options and combinations of these instruments, and
they primarily affect the Group’s net interest income, net trading income, net fee and commission income and derivative assets and
liabilities. Notional amounts of the contracts are not recorded on the balance sheet. Ali derivative financial instruments are held at fair
value through profit or loss.

Derivatives are classified as assets when their fair value is positive or as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Derivative assets
and liabilities arising from different transactions are only offset where there is a legal right of offset of the recognised amounts and the
parties intend to settle the cash flows on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Embedded derivatives

Hybrid contracts contain both a derivative and a non-derivative component. In such cases, the derivative component is termed an
embedded derivative. Where the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivatives are not closely related to those of
the host contract, and the host contract itself is not carried at fair value through profit or loss, the embedded derivative is bifurcated
and measured at fair value with gains and losses being recognised in the income statement.

Determination of fair value

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date.

For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities is based
on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity securities and quoted debt instruments on major
exchanges (for example, the Nigerian Stock Exchange (NSE)) and broker quotes from Bloomberg and Reuters.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an
exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive. Indications that a market is inactive are when there is a
wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in the bid-offer spread or there are few recent transactions.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techniques. In these techniques, fair values are estimated
from observable data in respect of similar financial instruments, using models to estimate the present value of expected future cash
flows or other valuation techniques, using inputs (for example, LIBOR yield curve, FX rates, volatilities and counterparty spreads)
existing at the dates of the statement of financial position.

The Group uses widely recognised valuation models for determining fair values of non standardised financial instruments of lower
complexity, such as options or interest rate and currency swaps. For these financial instruments, inputs into models are generally
market-observable.
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For more complex instruments, the Group uses internally developed models, which are usually based on valuation methods and
techniques generally recognised as standard within the industry. Valuation models are used primarily to value derivatives transacted
in the over-the-counter market, unifisted securities (including those with embedded derivatives) and other instruments for which
markets were or have become illiquid. Some of the inputs to these models may not be market observable and are therefore
estimated based on assumptions.

The output of a model is always an estimate or approximation of a value that cannot be determined with certainty, and valuation
techniques employed may not fully reflect all factors relevant to the positions the Group holds. Valuations are therefore adjusted,
where appropriate, to allow for additional factors including model risks, liquidity risk and counterparty credit risk.

Based on the established fair value model governance policies, and related controls and procedures applied, management believes
that these valuation adjustments are necessary and appropriate to fairly state the values of financial instruments carried at fair value
in the statement of financial position. Price data and parameters used in the measurement procedures applied are generally reviewed
carefully and adjusted, if necessary — particularly in view of the current market developments.

The estimated fair value of loans and advances represents an estimation of the value of the loans using average benchmarked
lending rates which were adjusted for specific entity risks based on history of losses.

De-recognition of financial instruments

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially al the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its
retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

2.9.7 Reclassification of financial assets

210

Reclassifications are made at fair value as of the reclassification date. Fair value becomes the new cost or amortised cost as
applicable, and no reversals of fair value gains or losses recorded before reclassification date are subsequently made. Effective
interest rates for financial assets reclassified to loans and receivables and held-to-maturity categories are determined at the
reclassification date. Further increases in estimates of cash flows adjust effective interest rates prospectively.

The group may reclassify a financial instrument when its intentions and the characteristics of the financial instrument changes.

Offsetting financial instruments

Master agreements provide that, if an event of default occurs, all outstanding transactions with the counterparty will fall due and all
amounts outstanding will be settled on a net basis.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position when there is a currently
legally enforceabile right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in
the normal course of business and in event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.

Revenue recognition
Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all interest-bearing financial instruments are recognised within ‘interest income’ and ‘interest
expense’ in profit or loss using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or group of assets and
liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts the expected future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument, or when
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount of the instrument.

The application of the method has the effect of recognising income (and expense) receivable (or payable) on the instrument evenly in
proportion to the amount outstanding over the period to maturity or repayment. [n calculating effective interest, the Group estimates
cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument but excluding future credit losses.

Fees, including those for early redemption, are included in the calculation to the extent that they can be measured and are
considered to be an integral part of the effective interest rate. Cash flows arising from the direct and incremental costs of issuing
financial instruments are also taken into account in the calculation. Where it is not possibie to otherwise estimate reliably the cash
flows or the expected life of a financial instrument, effective interest is calculated by reference fo the payments or receipts specified in
the contract, and the full contractual term.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income
is recognised using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss.
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(a)

(b)

Fees and commission income

Unless included in the effective interest calculation, fees and commissions are recognised on an accruals basis as the service is
provided. Fees and commissions not integral to effective interest arising from negotiating, or participating in the negotiation of a
transaction from a third party, such as the acquisition of foans, shares or other securities or the purchase or sale of businesses, are
recognised on completion of the underlying transaction. Portfolio and other management advisory and service fees are recognised
based on the applicable service contracts.

The same principle is applied to the recognition of income from wealth management, financial planning and custody services that are
continuously provided over an extended period of time.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive income is established.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred only if there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a loss
event') and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation,
and where observable data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivabies category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate the discount rate for
measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As is practically expedient, the
group may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument's fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor's credit rating), the reversal of the previously
recognised impairment loss is recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Assets classified as available for sale

The group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. For debt securities, the group uses the criteria referred to (a) above. In the case of equity investments
classified as available for sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence that
the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment [oss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss is removed from equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in the consolidated
income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the consolidated income statement. If, in a subsequent pericd, the
fair value of a debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss,the impairment loss is reversed through the consolidated income statement.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Additionally, assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for

impairment.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to self and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows (cash-generating units).
The impairment test also can be performed on a single asset when the fair value less cost to sell or the value in use can be
determined reliably. Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
wotuld have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised. An impairment loss in
respect of goodwill is not reversed.
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(i)

(i)

]

{ii)

Collateral

The Group obtains collateral where appropriate, from customers to manage their credit risk exposure to the customer. The collateral
normatly takes the form of a lien over the customer’s assets and gives the Group a claim on these assets for both existing and future
customer in the event that the customer defauits.

The Group may also use other credit instruments, such as stock borrowing contracts, and derivative contracts in order to reduce their
credit risk.

Collateral received in the form of securities is not recorded on the statement of financial position. Collateral received in the form of
cash is recorded on the statement of financial position with a corresponding liability. These items are assigned to deposits received
from bank or other counterparties. Any interest payable or receivable arising is recorded as interest expense or interest income

respectively.

Discontinued operations

The Group presents discontinued operations in a separate line in the income statement if an entity or a component of an entity has
been disposed or is classified as held for sale and:

i. represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations;

ii. is a part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations; or

iii. is & subsidiary aquired exlusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs on disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for
sale. When an operation is classified as a discontinued operation, the comparative income statement is re-presented as if the
operation had been discontinued from the start of the comparative year.

Non-cutrent assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be recovered
principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and
fair value less cost to sell.

Leases

Leases are divided into finance leases and operating leases.

The group is the lessee

Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by another party, the lessor, are classified as
operating leases.

Payments, including prepayments, made under operating leases {net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period
has expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which
termination takes place.

Finance lease

Leases of assets where the Group has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in deposits from banks
or deposits from customers depending on the counter party.

Finance lease
The interest element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The group is the lessor
Qperating lease

When assets are subject to an operating lease, the assets continue to be recognised as property and equipment based on the nature
of the asset. Lease income is recognised on a straight line basis.

Finance lease

When assets are held subject to a finance lease, the related asset is derecognised and the present value of the lease payments
(discounted at the interest rate implicit in the lease) is recognised as a receivable. The difference between the gross receivable and
the present value of the receivable is recognised as unearned finance income. Lease income is recognised over the term of the iease
using the net investment method which allocates rentals between finance income and repayment of capital in each accounting period
in such a way that finance income will emerge as a constant rate of return on the lessor's net investment in the lease.
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investment Properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the entities in the
consolidated group, are classified as investment properties. Investment properties comprise residential buildings constructed with the
aim of leasing out to tenants or for selling. Recognition of investment properties takes place only when it is probable that the future
economic benefits that are associated with the investment property will flow to the entity and the cost can be measured reliably. This
is usually the day when all risks are transferred.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount includes the cost of replacing
parts of an existing investment property at the time the cost was incurred if the recognition criteria are met; and excludes the costs of
day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value.

The fair value reflects market conditions at the date of the statement of financial position and is obtained from professional third party
valuators contracted to perform valuations on behalf of the Group. The fair value does not reflect future capital expenditure that will
improve or enhance the property.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset's carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are
charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Transfer to, or from, investment property is recognized only when there is a change in use, evidenced by one or more of the

i. commencement of owner-occupation (transfer from investment property to owner-occupied property)

ii. commencement of development with the view to sale (transfer from investment property to inventories)

iii. end of owner-occupation (transfer from owner-occupied property to investment property)

iv. commencement of an operating lease to another party (transfer from inventories to investment property)

v. end of construction or development (transfer from property in the course of construction/ development to investment property)

Investment properties are derecognized on disposal or when the investment properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from its disposal.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount and are included in other operating
income in the income statement.

Property, Plant and Equipment

All property, plant and equipment used by the parent or its subsidiaries is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent expenditures are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to
other operating expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Asset class Depreciation rate

Motor vehicles 25%

Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fittings 20%

Computer equipment 33 /3%

Plant and machinery 20%

Freehold buildings 2%

Leasehold buildings 2% for leases of 50 years and above and over expected
useful life for under 50 years

tand Not depreciated

Depreciation rates, methods and the residual values underlying the calculation of depreciation of items of property, plant and
equipment are kept under review on an annual basis to take account of any change in circumstances.

When deciding on depreciation rates and methods, the principal factors the Group takes into account are the expected rate of
technological developments and expected market requirements for, and the expected pattern of usage of, the assets.

When reviewing residual values, the Group estimates the amount that it would currently obtain for the disposal of the asset after
deducting the estimated cost of disposal if the asset were already of the age and condition expected at the end of its useful economic

life.

No depreciation is provided on freehold land, although, in common with all long-lived assets, it is subject to impairment testing, if
deemed appropriate.

Construction cost and improvements in respect of offices is carried at cost as capital work in progress. On completion of construction
or improvements, the related amounts are transferred to the appropriate category of property and equipment.
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An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use
or disposal. Any gain/ loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is included in income statementin the year the asset is derecognised.

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiary and associates, and represents the excess of the cost of acquisition, over the fair
value of the Group’s share of the assets acquired, and the liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed on the date of the acquisition.
For the purpose of calculating goodwill, fair values of acquired assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are determined by reference
to market values or by discounting expected future cash flows to present value. This discounting is either performed using market
rates or by using risk-free rates and risk-adjusted expected future cash flows. Goodwill is initially recognised as an asset at cost and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill which is recognised as an asset is reviewed at
least annually for impairment. Any impairment loss is immediately recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each cash-generating unit that is expected to derive benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than
the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Goodwill on acquisitions of associates is included in the amount of the investment.
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of the goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Computer software

Costs associated with maintaining computer software programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs
that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software products controlied by the Group, are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

i. It is technically feasible to complete the software product so that it will be available for use;

ii. Management intends to complete the software product and use or sell it;

iii. There is an ability to use or sell the software product;

iv. It can be demonstrated how the software product will generate probable future economic benefits;

v. Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the software product are
available; and

vi. The expenditure attributable to the software product during its development can be reliably measured.

Subsequent expenditure on computer software is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates.

Direct computer software development costs recognised as intangible assets are amortised on the straight-line basis over 3 years
and are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The carrying amount of
capitalised computer software is reviewed annually and is written down when the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

Brand, customer deposits and customer relationships

Brand, customer deposits and customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. They have finite useful lives and are subsequently carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses.These costs are amortised to profit or loss using straightline method over 3 years, 5 years and 2 years
respectively.

Investment contracts

The Group offers wealth management, term assurance, annuity, property and payment protection insurance products to customers
that take the form of long-term insurance contracts. The Group classifies its wealth management and other products as insurance
contracts where these transfer significant insurance risk, generally where the benefits payable on the occurrence of an insured event
are more significant than the benefits that would be payabie if the insured event does not occur. Contracts that do not contain
significant insurance risk or discretionary participation features are classified as investment contracts. Financial assets and liabilities
relatir}g to investment contracts are measured at amortised cost,

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash in
hand, deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly fiquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents excludes restricted balances with central banks.

20



FBN Holdings Pic.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

222
(0

a.

(i)

2.23

2.24

Employee benefits

Post-employment benefits

The Group has both defined benefit and defined contribution plans
Defined contribution plan

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employees the
benefits relating to employee service in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contribufions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a

reduction in the future payments is available.

The company and all entities within the Group make contributions in line with relevant pension laws in their jurisdiction. In Nigeria, the
company contributes 16.5% of each employee’s monthly emoluments (as defined by the Pension Act 2014) to the employee’s
Retirement Savings Account. The Act stipulates a minimum contribution of 10%.

Defined benefit plan

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement,
usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, years of service and compensation.

The liability recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the
defined benefit obligation at the date of the statement of financial position less the fair value of plan assets.

The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present
value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the Estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of Federal
government bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity
approximating the terms of the related pension liability.

Remeasurement gains and losses are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.
Past service costs are recognised immediately in income.

Short-term benefits
Short-term benefits consists of salaries, accumulated leave allowances, bonuses and other non-monetary benefits. Short-term

benefits are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related services provided.

A liability is recognised for the amount expected to be paid under short-term cash benefits such as accumulated leave and leave
allowances if the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past services provided by the
employee and the obligation can be measured reliably.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised for present obligations arising as consequences of past events where it is probable that a transfer of
economic benefit will be necessary to settle the obligation, and it can be reliably estimated.

When a leasehold property ceases to be used in the business or a demonstrable commitment has been made to cease touse a
property where the costs exceed the benefits of the property, provision is made, where the unavoidable costs of the future obligations
relating to the lease are expected to exceed anticipated rental income and other benefits. The net costs are discounted using market
rates of interest to reflect the long-term nature of the cash flows.

Provision is made for the anticipated cost of restructuring, including redundancy costs when an obligation exists. An obligation exists
when the Group has a detailed formal plan for restructuring a business and has raised valid expectations in those affected by the
restructuring by starting to impiement the plan or announcing its main features. The provision raised is normally utilised within nine
months.

Provision is made for undrawn loan commitments and similar facilities if it is probable that the facility will be drawn and result in the
recognition of an asset at an amount less than the amount advanced.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be confirmed only by uncertain future events or present obligations
where the transfer of economic benefit is uncertain or cannot be reliably measured. Contingent liabilities are not recognised but are
disclosed unless they are remote.

Insurance contracts

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both. Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. Such contracts may also transfer financial risk.

Investment contracts are those contracts that transfer financial risk with no significant insurance risk. The reserve has been
calculated as the amount standing to the credit of the policyholders (account balance) at the valuation date. The life cover element
(and corresponding premiums) have been reported as part of the insurance contract liabilities and valued similar to other risk
business as described above,
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Classification of contracts

A contract is classified as an insurance contract where the Group accepts significant insurance risk by agreeing with the policyholder
to pay benefits if a specified uncertain future event (the insured event) adversely affects the policyholder or other beneficiary.
Significant insurance risk exists where it is expected that for the duration of the policy or part thereof, policy benefits payable on the
occurrence of the insured event will exceed the amount payable on early termination, before allowance for expense deductions at
early termination. Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, the classification remains unchanged for the
remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly during this period.

Recognition and measurement

Short-term insurance contracts

Short-duration life insurance contracts protect the Group's customers from the consequences of events (such as death or disability)
that would affect the ability of the customer or his/her dependents to maintain their current level of income. They are usually short-
duration life insurance contracts ranging between 12 to 24 months period of coverage. Guaranteed benefits paid on occurrence of the
specified insurance event are either fixed or linked to the extent of the economic loss suffered by the policyholder. There are no
maturity or surrender benefits.

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the period of coverage. The
portion of premium received on in-force contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance sheet date is reported as the
unearned premium liability. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission and are gross of any taxes or duties levied on

premiums.

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to income as incurred based on the estimated liability for compensation owed to
contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract hoiders. They include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and arise
from events that have occurred up to the end of the reporting period even if they have not yet been reported to the Group. The Group
does not discount its liabilities for unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using the input of assessments for
individual cases reported to the Group and statistical analyses for the claims incurred but not reported (IBNR), and to estimate the
expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may be affected by external factors.

The liability reserve on short term insurance contract is made up of an unexpired premium reserve (UPR) and reserve for 'Incurred
but not reported’ claims (IBNR). The UPR represent premium received in advance on short term contracts and is released through
the income statement over the life of the insurance contract period after adjusting for acquisition expenses. IBNR reserves are
required to take account of the delay in reporting claims. These are determined by considering ultimate claims ratios for the life
schemes on the Group’s books. The ratios differ by industry and have been determined following a historical analysis of portfolio
claims experience. The IBNR reserves are calculated by adjusting the uitimate claims amounts to allow for claims already paid and
those outstanding for payment, and again adjusted to allow for the holding of a separate UPR reserve. As the short term insurance
contract experience of FBN builds up we will be able to adjust for company-specific claims settiement patterns.

Long-term insurance contracts with fixed and guaranteed terms

These contracts insure events associated with human life (for example, death or survival) over a long duration. Premiums are
recognised as revenue when they become payable by the contract holder. Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.
Benefits are recorded as an expense when they are incurred.

A liability for contractual benefits that are expected to be incurred in the future is recorded when the premiums are recognised. The
liability is determined as the sum of the expected discounted value of the benefit payments and the future administration expenses
that are directly related to the contract, less the expected discounted value of the theoretical premiums that would be required to
meet the benefits and administration expenses based on the valuation assumptions used (the valuation premiums). The liability is
based on assumptions as to mortality, persistency, maintenance expenses and investment income that are established at the time
the contract is issued. A margin for adverse deviations is included in the assumptions.

Where insurance contracts have a single premium or a limited number of premium payments due over a significantly shorter period
than the period during which benefits are provided, the excess of the premiums payable over the valuation premiums is deferred and
recognised as income in line with the decrease of unexpired insurance risk of the contracts in force or, for annuities in force, in line
with the decrease of the amount of future benefits expected to be paid. The liabilities are recalculated at each end of the reporting
period using the assumptions established at inception of the contracts.

The Long term insurance contracts insure events associated with human life. They include the following:

Individual insurance contracts

The reserve has been calculated using the gross premium valuation approach. This reserving methodology adopts a cash flow
approach taking into account all expected future cash flows including premiums, expenses and benefit payments to satisfy the liability
adequacy test. The test also considers current estimates of all contractual cash flows, and of related cash flows such as claims
handling costs, as well as cash flows resulting from embedded options and guarantees (where applicable).

Individual savings contracts

The reserve has been calculated as the amount standing to the credit of the policyholders (account balance) at the valuation date.
The life cover element (and corresponding premiums) have been reported as part of the insurance contract liabilities and valued
similar to other risk business as described above.
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Insurance conlract liabilities

Life insurance policy claims received up to the last day of each financial period and claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) are
provided for and included in the policy liabilities. Past claims experience is used as the basis for determining the extent of the IBNR

claims.

income from reinsurance policies is recognised concurrently with the recognition of the related policy benefit. Insurance liabilities are
presented without offsetting them against related reinsurance assets.

Insurance liabilities are retained in the statement of financial position until they are discharged or cancelled and/or expire. The
company performs a liability adequacy test to determine the recognised insurance liabilities and an impairment test for reinsurance

assets held at each reporting date.
Fiduciary activities

The Group acts as trustees and in other fiduciary capacities that result in the holding or placing of assets on behalf of individuals,
trusts, retirement benefit plans and other institutions. These assets and income arising thereon are excluded from these financial

statements, as they are not assets of the Group.
Issued debt and equity securities

issued financial instruments or their components are classified as liabilities where the contractual arrangement results in the Group
having a present obligation to either deliver cash or another financial asset to the holder, to exchange financial instruments on terms
that are potentially unfavourable or to satisfy the obligation otherwise than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of equity shares. Issued financial instruments, or their components, are classified as equity where
they meet the definition of equity and confer on the holder a residual interest in the assets of the Group. The components of issued
financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are accounted for separately with the equity component being
assigned the residual amount after deducting from the instrument as a whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of

the liability component.

Share capital

Share issue costs

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business are shown in equity as
a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recagnised in equity in the period in which they are approved by the shareholders.
Dividends for the year that are declared after the reporting date are dealt with in the subsequent events note.

Dividends proposed by the Directors but not yet approved by members are disclosed in the financial statements in accordance with
the requirements of the Company and Allied Matters Act.

Earnings per share

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit
and loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Group by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

Treasury shares

Where the Company or other members of the Group purchase the Company’s equity share capital, the consideration paid is
deducted from total shareholders’ equity as treasury shares until they are cancelled. Where such shares are subsequently sold or
reissued, any consideration received is included in shareholders’ equity.
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Statutory credit reserve

In compliance with the Prudential Guidelines for licensed Banks, the Group assesses qualifying financial assets using the guidance
under the Prudential Guidelines. The guidelines apply objective and subjective criteria towards providing for losses in risk assets.
Assets are classed as performing or non-performing. Non-performing assets are further classed as Substandard, Doubtful or Lost
with attendants provision as per the table below based on objective criteria.

Classification Perceantags  Basis

Subtstandarc : 1O HIinterest ands/or
fprincipal avercue oy
00 days but less ¢
than 180 days

Doubtrul . H50% INlerest and/or :
principal overdue by
180 days but less
than 365 days

-1 23 B 1 00%0 Interaest and/or i
‘principal overdue by
iMmore than 3685 days

A more accelerated provision may be done using the subjective criteria. A 2% provision is taken on all risk assets that are not
specifically provisioned.

The results of the application of Prudential Guidelines and the impairment determined for these assets under |AS 39 are compared.
The IAS 39 determined impairment charge is always included in the income statement.

Where the Prudential Guidelines provision is greater, the difference is appropriated from Retained Earnings and included in a non-
distributable reserve "Statutory credit reserve”. Where the IAS 39 impairment is greater, no appropriation is made and the amount of
the 1AS 39 impairment is recognised in income statement.

Following an examination, the regulator may also require more amounts be set aside on risk and other assets. Such additional
amounts are recognised as an appropriation from retained earnings to statutory risk reserve.

Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specific payments to reimburse the holder of a loss it incurs
because a specific debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee
liabilities are initially recognised at the fair value, and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the financial guarantee. The
guaranteee liability is subsequently carried at the higher of this amortised amount and the present value of any expected payment
(when a payment under the guaranteee has become probable).

24



FBN Holdings Plc.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
At 30 SEPTEMBER 2017

3 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The Group's unaudited financial statements and its financial result are influenced by accounting policies, assumptions, estimates
and management judgement, which necessarily have to be made in the course of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best estimates undertaken in accordance with
the applicable standard. Estimates and judgements are evaluated on a continuous basis, and are based on past experience and
other factors, including expectations with regard to future events. Accounting policies and management's judgements for certain
items are especially critical for the Group’s resuits and financial situation due to their materiality.

Impairment charges on financial assets

o

The Group reviews its loan portfolios for impairment on an on-going basis. The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. Impairment provisions are also recognised for losses not specifically identified but which,
experience and observable data indicate, are present in the portfolio at the date of assessment.

Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and objective evidence
of impairment similar to those in the portfolio, when scheduling its future cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for
estimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss
estimates and actual loss experience.

The use of historical loss experience is supplemented with significant management judgment to assess whether current economic
and credit conditions are such that the actual level of inherent losses is likely to differ from that suggested by historical experience.
In normal circumstances, historical experience provides objective and relevant information from which to assess inherent loss
within each portfolio. In other circumstances, historical loss experience provides less relevant information about the inherent loss
in a given portfolio at the balance sheet date, for example, where there have been changes in economic conditions such that the
most recent trends in risk factors are not fully reflected in the historical information. In these circumstances, such risk factors are
taken into account when calculating the appropriate levels of impairment allowances, by adjusting the impairment loss derived
solely from historical loss experience.

The estimation of impairment losses is subject to uncertainty, which has increased in the current economic environment, and is
highly sensitive to factors such as the leve! of economic activity, unemployment rates, property price trends, and interest rates. The
assumptions underlying this judgement are highly subjective. The methodology and the assumptions used in calculating
impairment losses are reviewed regularly in the light of differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

b Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments where no active market exists or where quoted prices are not otherwise available are
determined by using valuation techniques. In these cases, the fair values are estimated from observable data in respect of similar
financial instruments or using models. Where market observable inputs are not available, they are estimated based on appropriate
assumptions.

Where valuation techniques (for example, models) are used to determine fair values, they are validated and periodically reviewed
by qualified personnel independent of those that sourced them. All models are certified before they are used, and models are
calibrated to ensure that outputs reflect actual data and comparative market prices. To the extent practical, models use only
observable data; however, areas such as credit risk (both own credit risk and counterparty risk), volatilities and correlations require
management o make estimates.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Held-to-maturity investments

[4]

In accordance with IAS 38 guidance, the Group classifies some non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity as held to maturity. This classification requires significant judgement. in making this judgement, the
Group evaluates its intention and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group were to fail to keep these investments to
maturity other than for the specific circumstances — for example, selling an insignificant amount close to maturity — the Group is
required to reclassify the entire category as available for sale. Accordingly, the investments would be measured at fair value
instead of amortised cost. During the period, the held to maturity investment portfolio was not tainted.

o

Retirement benefit obligation

For defined benefit pension plans, the measurement of the group's benefit obligation and net periodic pension cost/(income)
requires the use of certain assumptions, including, among others, estimates of discount rates and expected return on plan assets.
An actuarial valuation is performed by actuarial valuation experts on an annual basis to determine the retirement benefit obligation

of the group.
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4 Segment information

Following the management approach of IFRS 8, operating segments are reported in accordance with the internal reports provided to the
Board of Directors (the chief operating decision maker), which is responsible for allocating resources to the operating segments and

assesses its performance.
The Group is divided into the following business units:

Commercial Banking Business Group
This is the group's core business, which provides both individual and corporate clients/ customers with financial intermediation services.
This business segment includes the group's local, international and representative offices offering commercial banking services.

Merchant Banking and Asset Management Business Group (MBAM)
This is the investment-banking arm of the Group, providing advisory, asset management, markets and private equity services to a large
institutiona! (corporations and governments) clientele, as well as merchant banking services.

Insurance Business Group
This includes the group's insurance brokerage business and the full underwriting business comprising life and general insurance
businesses. The underwriting business is undertaken by FBN Insurance Limited, in partnership with South African based Sanlam Group.

Others
Others, previously referred to as Other Financial Services, comprises of FBN Holdings Plc., the parent company, and Rainbow Town

Development Limited.

The Group's management reporting is based on a measure of operating profit comprising net interest income, loan impairment charges,
net fee and commission income, other income and non-interest expenses. This measurement basis excludes the effect of non-recurring
expenditure from the operating segments such as restructuring costs, legal expenses and goodwill impairments when the impairment is
the result of an isolated, non-recurring events.

As the Board of Directors reviews operating profit, the resuits of discontinued operations are not included in the measure of operating
profit. The transactions between segments are carried out at arm's length, which is consistent with the basis of transacting with external

parties.

The information provided about each segment is based on the internal reports about segment profit or loss, assets and other information,
which are regularly reviewed by the Board of Directors.

Segment assets and liabilities comprise operating assets and liabilities, being the majority of the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Segment result of operations
The segment information provided to the Board of Directors for the reportable segments for the period ended 30 September 2017 is as

follows:

Commercial MBAM Insurance Others Total

Banking Group Group
Group
N 'million N 'million N 'million N "million N 'million

At 30 September 2017
Total segment revenue 398,012 27,976 12,470 1,733 440,190
Inter-segment revenue (72) (488) (119) (327) (1,006)
Revenue from external customers 397,940 27,488 12,351 1,405 439,184
Interest income 332,338 18,585 3,771 1,382 356,076
interest expense (90,686) (11,045) - - (101,731)
Profit/(loss) before tax 44,247 8,934 3,508 (1,256) 55,433
Income tax expense (5,987) (2,668) (899) (40) (9,594)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 38,260 6,266 2,609 (1,296) 45,839
Loss for the year from discontinued operations ==(837) (837)
Impairment charge on credit losses (97,578) (10) - - (97,588)
Share of profit/(loss) from associates - 256 - - 256
Depreciation (7,841) (639) (176) (297) (8,953)
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4 Segment information continued

Commercial MBAM Insurance Others Total
Banking Group Group
Group
N 'million N 'million N 'million N 'million N ‘million

At 30 September 2017
Total assets 4,593,833 172,823 45,518 51,738 4,863,911
Other measures of assets:
Loans and advances to customers 2,008,346 35,137 296 136 2,043,915
Expenditure on non-current assets (PP&E) 78,112 1,852 2,142 1,014 84,119
Investment securities 1,109,720 81,076 38,017 10,214 1,239,029
Total liabilities 4,073,546 116,875 33,727 8,712 4,232,860
At 30 September 2016
Total segment revenue 381,013 27672 9,671 1,823 420,279
Inter-segment revenue (1,123) - (418) (1,386) (2,927)
Revenue from external customers 379,890 27,672 9,253 537 417,352
Interest income 264,612 11,830 1,698 437 278,577
Interest expense (68,165) (7,501) - 0 (75,666)
Profit/(loss) before tax 44,692 12,699 1,988 (1,924) 57,455
Income tax expense (9,200) (2,944) (380) (2,414) (14,938)
Profit for the period 39,062 9,470 1,291 (2,070) 42,517
Impairment charge on credit losses (114,728) 11 - 0 (114,717)
Impairment charge on doubtful receivables - - - - -
Impairment charge on goodwill - - - - -
Depreciation (8,037) (353) (149) (282) (8,821)
At 31 December 2016
Total assets 4,469,601 183,417 31,962 51,825 4,736,805
Other measures of assets:
Loans and advances to customers 2,041,852 41,684 293 85 2,083,894
Expenditure on non-current assets (PP&E) 83,358 1,823 1,937 1,197 88,315
Investment securities 961,236 51,089 25,913 12,350 1,050,588
Total liabilities 3,992,998 129,286 22,691 9,255 4,154,230

Geographical information

Revenues

Nigeria
Qutside Nigeria
Total

Non current asset

Nigeria
Outside Nigeria
Total

30 September 30 September

2017 2016

N ‘million N 'million
425,028 374,224
14,157 43,128
439,185 417,352

30 September 31 December

2017 2016

N 'miltion N 'miilion
75,140 74,914
8,979 10,322
84,119 85,236
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5 Interest income

Investment securities
Loans and advances to banks
Loans and advances to customer

6 Interest expense

Deposit from customer
Deposit from banks
Borrowings

7 impairment charge for credit losses

Loans and advances to customers
Increase in collective impairment
Increase in specific impairment

Net recoveries on loans previously written off

Other assets
Increase in impairmment

Insurance premium {net)
Change in insurance contract liabifities

9 Fee and commission income

Credit related fees (i)

Letters of credit commissions and fees
Electronic banking fees

Commission on bonds and guarantees
Funds transfer & intermediation fees
Account Maintenance

Brokerage and intermediations
Custodian fees

Financial advisory fees (ii}

Fund management fees (ii)

Other fees and commissions

GROUP COMPANY
Quarter ended Year to date Year to date  Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 Set b 30 Septemb 30 k 30 Septemb 30 September 30 Septemb:
2017 2017 2016 2017 2017 2016
N 'million N 'miflion N 'million N ‘mitlion N 'miilion N ‘million
38,522 120,118 74,144 372 1,277 435
4,606 13,026 11,380 162 399 102
80,570 222,931 193,043 2 5 4
123,698 356,076 278,577 536 1,681 541
GROUP
Quarter ended Yearto date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 t 30 Septemb
2017 2017 2016
N ‘million N 'million N 'miilion
22,961 69,895 56,698
4,548 14,856 5,106
5,929 16,980 13,862
33,438 101,731 75,666
GROUP
Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 Sey 30 Seg ber 30 Septemb
2017 2017 2018
N ‘million N 'million N 'million
105 526 549
36,384 100,759 116,113
36,499 101,285 116,662
(1,318) (3,697) (1,945)
35,180 97,588 114,717
GROUP
Quarter ended  Year to date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 Sep 30 Sef b
2017 2017 2016
N ‘miflion N 'million N ‘miilion
6,062 17,070 10,335
(2,736) (6,547) (2,679)
3,326 10,523 7.656
GROUP
Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 b 30 September 30 Sey &
2017 2017 2016
N 'million N "million N ‘million
978 3,894 2,682
1,030 3,040 1,527
5,078 15,675 15,496
108 687 1,034
1,006 3,183 3,017
2,901 7,134 11,274
423 1,263 1,375
1,562 4,379 3,489
1,829 3,544 5,040
1,081 2,319 1,665
1,625 9,165 6,103
17.521 54,283 52,702

(i) The credit related fees relate to fees charged on overdraft facilities.

(ity Included in financial advisory and fund management fees are the fee and commission income generated from trusts and other fiduciary activities.
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9b Fees and commission expense

10

1"

13

Fees and commission expense

GROUP
Quarter ended Yearto date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 September 30 Septemt
2017 2047 2016
N 'miilion N "million N 'miltion
3,181 9,087 7,745

Fee and commission expense largely relates to charges raised by other banks on holders of First Bank of Nigeria Limited ATM cards, who used other
banks' machines while transacting business; and SMS alert related expense.

Net (1 Ygains on t securities GROUP COMPANY
Quarter ended Year to date Year to date  Quarter ended Yearto date  Year to date
i 30 Sef b 308 30 b 30 Sey k 30 Septemb
2017 207 2016 2017 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘mitlion N *miltion N *million N *million N ‘miifion
Equity securities {84) {84) {408} - - -
Debt securities 1,088 918 4,808 8 15 (12)
1,004 835 4,402 8 15 (12)
Net gains/{} ) from fi fal instr ts at falr value through profit or foss
GROUP
Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 Sep 30 Septemb
2017 2017 2016
N ‘mitlion N ‘million N ‘million
Derivatives 2,381 7.987 1,561
Trading gain on debt securities 587 2,189 1,305
Fair value loss on debt securities {324) {1,578) 426
2,644 8,598 3,292
Dividend income GROUP COMPANY
Quarter ended  Year to date Year to date  Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
f b 30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 30 Septemb
2017 2017 2016 2017 2017 2016
N ‘million N 'miliion N ‘million N ‘mitlion N ‘million N "miilion
FBN Insurance Brokers Limited - - - - - 800
FBN Insurance Limited - - - - 164 659
Unified Payments Nigeria - 280 112 - - -
Africa Finance Corporation 102.97 1,566 579 - - -
Nigeria interbank Settlement System - 23 - - - -
Others 57 117 155 - - -
Withholding tax on dividend - - - - (164) -
160 1,986 846 - - 1,259
Operating expenses GROUP COMPANY
Quarter ended  Year to date Year to date  Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 September 30 Septemb
2017 2017 2018 2017 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘million N ‘million N 'million N ‘million N 'million
Directors' emoluments 674 2,028 1,249 143 478 288
Loss on sale of property, plant & equipment - - 41 - - -
Deposit insurance premium 3.231 9,210 8,524 - - -
AMCON resolution cost 4,294 13,806 12,999 - - -
Maintenance 5,584 15,495 12,641 48 124 78
Insurance premium, rent and rates 1,029 3,898 4,042 38 114 135
Advert and corporate promotions 1,323 4,448 3,318 65 140 91
Professional fees 1,953 6,011 4,183 198 366 514
Donations and subscriptions 161 924 851 1 8 4
Stationery and printing 333 1,208 1,391 8 32 42
Communication, fight and power 2,165 6,426 5,284 8 8 18
Cash handling charges 713 1,871 1,773 - - -
Operational and other losses 1,504 3,800 2,262 - - -
Passages and travels 1,265 3,430 3,177 g5 251 250
Qutsourced cost 4,627 12,295 12,304 5 15 13
Underwriting expenses 1,059 2,918 1,757 - - -
Other operating expenses 2,913 10,306 6,703 81 293 279
32,827 98,174 82,499 689 1,828 1.713
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14 Taxation - Income tax expense and Hability GROUP COMPANY
Quarter ended Year to date Yeartodate Quarter ended Year to date  Year to date
30 Septemb 30 b 30 Septemb 30 Septemb 30 September 30 Sep
2017 2017 2016 2017 2017 2018
N 'million N ‘million N ‘million N ‘million N ‘million N ‘million
Corporate tax 4,551 9,004 11,941 13 37 -
Education tax 138 599 1,055 - - -
Technology tax - - - - - 20
(Over)/ under provision in prior years - 3 - - 3 -
Current income tax - current period 4,689 9,606 12,996 13 40 20
Origination and (reversal) of temporary deferred (1,237) {12} 1,842 - - -
tax differences
Income tax expense 3,452 9,594 14,938 13 40 20
GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb 3D b 30 Septemb 3P b
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘miition N ‘million N ‘miltion N 'million
The movement in the current income tax liability is as follows:
At start of the period 8,897 8,773 84 -
Effect of adjustment on discontinued operations - 6) - -
Tax paid (9,436) (7.889) (87) (20)
Withholding tax credit utilised - {490) - -
Income tax charge 9,606 8,356 40 104
Effect of Changes in Exchange Rate 1,136 153 - -
At end of the period 10,203 8,897 37 84
Current 10,203 8,897 37 84
15 Cash and balances with central banks
GROUP
30 Septemb 31 D b
2017 2016
N 'million N 'miflion
Cash 121,436 101,255
Balances with central banks excluding mandatory reserve deposits 13,177 46,108
134,613 147,363
Mandatory reserve deposits with Central Banks 442,471 542 802
577,084 690,165
Mandatory reserve deposits with Central Banks represents a percentage of customers' deposits (prescribed from time to time by the Central Bank) which
are not available for daily use. For the purposes of the Statement of cashfiow, this balance is excluded from cash and cash equivalents.
16 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three months’ maturity from the date of
acquisition, including cash in hand, deposits held at call with other banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities less than
three months.
GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb 31D L 30 Septemb 31 D b
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘million N ‘million N 'mitlion
Cash 121,436 101,255 - -
Balances with central banks other than
mandatory reserve deposits 13,477 46,108 - -
Loans and advances to banks excluding long
term placements 622,220 377,500 4677 645
Treasury bills included in financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss 158 5,671 - -
Treasury bills and eligible bills excluding
pledged treasury bills 293,188 215,697 - -
1,050,178 746,231 4,677 645
17 Loans and advances to banks
GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb 31D b 30 Septemb: 3D b
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘million N 'million N ‘million
Current balances with banks within Nigeria 232,048 105,532 240 18
Current balances with banks outside Nigeria 274,258 148,719 - -
Placements with banks and discount houses 115,914 123,249 4,437 627
622,220 377,500 4877 645
Long term placement 9,241 67,371 - -
Canying amount 631,461 444,871 4877 645
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18 Loans and advances to customers

Overdrafts

Term loans

Staff loans

Project finance

Advances under finance lease

Less impairment allowance:
- Specific
- Collective

19 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Treasury bills with maturity of less than 80 days
Treasury bills with maturity over 90 days

Bonds

Total debt securities

Listed equity securities
Unlisted equity securities
Total equity securities

Derivative assets
Total assets at fair value through profit or loss

20 Ilnvestment Securities

Securities available for sale

Debt securities ~ at fair value:

- Treasury bills with maturity of fess than 80 days
- Treasury bifls with maturity of more than 90 days
- Bonds

Equity securities — at fair value:

~ Listed

Equity securities — at fair value:

- Unlisted

Total securities classified as available for sale

20,

s

20,2 Securities held to maturity
Debt securities — at amortised cost:
- Treasury bills with maturity of less than 80 days
- Treasury bills with maturity of more than 90 days
- Bonds
Total securities classified as held-to-maturity

21 Asset pledged as collateral

GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemt 31 D b 30 Sey b 3D
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘miltion N ‘miflion N ‘million N 'miition
271,524 393,870 - -
1,975,178 1,875,644 - -
11,618 7,802 1386 65
24,618 115,923 - -
1,232 1,838 - -
2,284,172 2,394,778 136 65
(196,761} (274,416) - -
(43,496) (36,468) - -
2,043,915 2,083,894 136 65
GROUP
30 September 31 December
2017 2016
N ‘million N 'miifion
158 5671
3,404 5,866
2,466 14,469
6,028 26,006
709 286
6,934 5,242
7,643 5528
25,931 15177
39,602 46,711
GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb 3D b 30 Septemb 31D b
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘miilion N 'million N ‘million
279,493 212,755 - -
473,238 456,952 6,739 8,862
309,753 192,302 642 654
1,088 1,362 - -
61,426 58,382 2,834 2,834
1,124,899 921,753 10,215 12,350
13,695 2,942 - -
21,866 18,401 - -
64,680 87,136 - -
100,241 108,479 - -

The assets pledged by the group are strictly for the purpose of providing collateral to the counterparty. To the extent that the counterparty is not permitted to
sell andlor repledge the assets in the absence of default, they are classified in the statement of financial position as pledged assets. These transactions are
conducted under terms that are usual and customary to standard securities borrowing and lending activities.

The nature and camying amounts of the assets pledged as collaterals are as follows:

Treasury bilis
Bonds

GROUP
30 Septemb. 1D }
2017 2018
N ‘million N 'miilion
20,363 123,784
77,703 73,636
98,066 197,420
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22
22,1

Hi

vi

vif

viii

investment in subsidiaries

Principal subsidiary undertakings
COMPANY
30 September 31 December
2017 2016
N ‘million N *mitlion
DIRECT SUBSIDIARIES OF FBN HOLDINGS PLC.
First Bank of Nigeria Limited (Note 21 (i)) 205,557 205,557
FBN Capital Limited (Note 21 (i)} 4,300 4,300
FB8N Insurance Limited (Note 21 (jii)) 4,724 4,724
FBN Insurance Brokers Limited (Note 21 (iv)) 25 25
FBN Merchant Bank Limited (Note 21 (v)) 17,206 17,206
231,812 231,812
INDIRECT SUBS!DIARIES OF FBN HOLDINGS PLC.
FBN Trustees Limited (Note 21 (vi)) 6,033 6,033
F8N Funds Limited {Note 21 (vif)) 4,550 4,550
10,583 10,583
242,355 242,395

All shares in subsidiary undertakings are ordinary shares. For all periods shown, the group owned the total issued shares in all its subsidiary undertakings
except FBN Insurance Limited and New Vilia Limited (Rainbow Town Development Limited) in which it owned 65% and 55% respectively. There are no
significant restrictions on any of the subsidiaries. All subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidation. The proportion of the voting rights in the
subsidiary undertakings held directly by the parent company and the group do not differ from the proportion of ordinary shares held. The total non-controfting
interest as at 30 September 2017 is N(380) million (2016: N(548)million).

Subsidiary
Proportionof  Proportion of
Principal activity shares held shares held
Country of directly by directly by the Statutory
incorporation  parent (%) group {%} year end
First Bank of Nigena Limited (Note 21 (i)) Banking Nigera 100 100 31 December
FBN Capitat Limited (Note 21 (ii}) Investment Banking & Asset
Management Nigeria 100 100 31 December
FBN Insurance Limited (Note 21 (iit)) Insurance Nigena 65 65 31 December
FBN Insurance Brokers Limited (Note 21 (iv)) Insurance Nigeria 100 100 31 December
New Villa Limited (Rainbow Town Development
Limited) (Note 21 (v)) Investment and General Trading  Nigena 55 55 31 December
FBN Merchant Bank Limited (Note 21 (vi}} Merchant Banking Nigena 100 100 31 December
FBN Trustees Limited (Note 21 (vii)) Trusteaship Nigeria 100 100 31 December
FBN Funds Limited (Note 21 (viii)) Investment Banking & Asset
Management Nigeria 100 100 31 December
First Bank of Nigeria Limited

The bank commenced operations in Nigeria in 1894 as a branch of Bank of British West Africa (BBWA), and was incorporated as a private limited lability
company in Nigeria in 1968, The Bank was the parent company of the Group until 30 November 2012, when a business restructuring was effected in
accordance with the directives of the Ceniral Bank of Nigeria and FBN Holdings Pic became the parent company of the Group.

FBN Capital Limited
FBN Capital Limited is & private limited liability company incorporated in Nigeria and commenced operations on 1 April 2005. it is registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) to undertake issuing house business. It is also involved in the business of asset management and financial

advisory.

FBN Insurance Limited (Formerly FBN Life Assurance Limited)

In February 2010, NAICOM granted an operating licence to First Bank of Nigeria Pic. (First Bank) to establish a life assurance business in partnership with
Santam Group of South Africa. Consequently, First Bank incorporated a subsidiary, FBN Life Assurance Limited. First Bank has a holding of 85% in the
equity of FBN Life Assurance Limited. Consequent upon the restructuring of 2612, the investment is transferred to FBN Holdings Plc. and the name of the
company was changed to FBN Insurance Limited in 2014.

FBN tnsurance Brokers Limited

The company was incorporated under the Companies and Allied Matters Act CAP C20 LFN 2004, as a limited liability company on 31 March 1994 with the
name ‘Trust Link Insurance Brokers Limited. The company prepared financial statements up to 31 March 1998 after which it became dormant The
company was resuscitated on 1 April 2000 as FBN Insurance Brokers Limited. The principal activity of the company is insurance brokerage business.

FBN Merchant Bank Limited (farmerly Kakawa Discount House Limited)

The Company was incorporated in Nigeria as a limited liability company on 14 February 1995 and was granted a license to camy on the business of a
discount house and commenced operations on 16 November 1995. Recently, the Company has transformed into a merchant bank. The Central Bank of
Nigeria (CBN) license for merchant banking was obtained in May 2015 and while merchant banking operations commenced on 2 November, 2015.

FBN Trustees Limited (First Trustees Nigeria Limited) .

FBN Trustees Limited was incorporated in Nigeria as a limited liability company on 8 August 1979 and commenced business on 3 September 1979. The
company was established to engage in the business of trusteeship as well as portfolio management, financiall investment advisory services.

Pursuant to the approval of the sharehoiders at the Annual General Meeting of FBN Holdings (FBNH) on May 26, 2016 and the approvals of the relevant
regulatory bodies, the Group concluded the restructuring of N19.5bilion convertible loan in FBN Trustees Limited (FTNL). The impact of the restructuring on
the company was the write down of the investment against the share premium of FBNH,

FBN Funds Limited (First Funds Limited)
FBN Funds Limited was incorporated on 14 November 2002. it commenced operations on 1 Aprit 2003. Its principal activities are to carry on venture capital
and private equity business.

New Villa Limited (Rainbow Town Development Limited)
New Villa Limited is a special purpose vehicle incorporated on 28 November 2008. its principal activities include real estate investments and general
trading. The investment was fully impaired in December 2016. This subsidiary was reclassified as discontinued operations in December 2016.
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23

23

24

5 n jates {equity hod)

Seawolf Olifield Services Limited {SOSL)
FBN Holdings Plc. holds 42% shareholding in Seawolf Oiffields Services Limited (SOSL). In 2014, Asset Mananagement Corporation of Nigeria {AMCON),

a major creditor of SOSL., appointed a receiver manager to take over the business, resulting in the loss of significant influence of FBN Hoidings Pic. in the
company. Hence full impainment has been recognised on the investment. SOSL is a company incorporated in Nigeria and is involved in the oil and gas
sector. SOSL has share capital consisting only of ordinary share capital which are held directly by the group; the country of incorporation or registration is
also their principal place of business. SOSL is not publicly traded and there is no published price information.

FBN Heritage Fund
FBN Heritage Fund is an open-ended Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered mutuat fund that invests in stocks, bonds, money market

instruments, real estate and other securities in the Nigerian Capital Markets. FBN Heritage Fund is not publicly traded. However, the fund manager
publishes daily unit price of the fund on the memorandum fisting section of the Nigerian Stock Exchange. The unit price of the fund as at reporting date was
N141.5 (Cost: N100). By December 2016, FBN Holdings Plc. sold its 37% holding in FBN Heritage Fund, thus the group's total holding was reduced to 40%
thereby resulting in loss of control and reclassification of the investment from subsidiary to associate.

¢ in jates (equity method)
GROUP COMPANY
30 Sey ' 31D b 30 Septemt 3D b
2017 2016 2017 2016
N ‘miltion N ‘million N ‘million N "miilion
SOSL
Cost 10,375 10,375 10,375 10,375
Impairment loss/accumulated share of loss (10,375) {10,375) (10,375) {10,375)
FBN Heritage Fund
Balance at beginning of period 1,114 - - 1,500
Reclassification due to loss of control - 800 - -
Fair vaiue gain - 214 - -
Share of profit 256 - - -
Share of other comprehensive income {55)
Disposal - - (1,500}
At end of period 1,315 1,114 - -
1,315 1,114 - -
Property, piant and equipment
Cost 157,839 156,430 1,840 1,832
Accumulated Depreciation (73.720) (68,115) (1,275) (983)
84,119 88,315 665 849
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25 intangible assets

Goodwilt
Acquisition cost
Accumulated Amortisation

26 Other assets

Financial assets:
Premium debtors
Accounts receivable

Less specific allowances for impairment
Non Financial assets:
Stock of consumables

Prepayments

Net other assets balance

27 investment properties

At start of the period

Disposal

Addition and capital improvement
Net gains from fair value adjustment

28 Deposits from banks

Due to banks within Nigeria
Due to banks outside Nigeria

GROUP
30 September 31 December
2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘million
4,431 4,576
23,143 20,103
(12,455) (9,351)
15,119 15,328
GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb: 31D b 30 Septemb 3D b
2017 2018 2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘miilion N ‘million N ‘million
331 24 - -
54,530 42,488 17 10,260
54,921 42,512 17 10,260
(7.770) (7.910) - -
47,151 34,602 17 10,260
1,728 1,610 - -
15,352 11,574 282 339
17.080 13,184 282 339
64,231 47,788 299 10,598
GROUP
30 Sep 31D b
2017 2016
N ‘miltion N ‘million
3,003 3,025
- (222)
- 12
- 188
3.003 3,003
GROUP
30 Sey ' 3D b
2017 2016
N ‘million N 'million
508,698 372,079
97,975 43,999
606,673 416,078

Deposits from banks only include financial instruments classified as fiabilities at amortised cost and has a remaining period to contractual maturity of less

than 12 months
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29

30

U}

(i)

(i)

()

Deposits from customers GROUP
30 Septemt 31 D b

2017 2016
N ‘million N ‘miilion
Current 703,962 735,325
Savings 974,073 852,689
Term 841,155 842,260
Domiciliary 408,256 564,679
11,005 9,268

Electronic purse

2,938,451 3,104,221

Deposits from customers only include financial instruments classified as liabilities at amortised cost.

Borrowings
GROUP
30 September 31 December
2017 2016
N ‘million N *miltion
Long term borrowing comprise:

FBN EuroBond (i) 229,872 233,976
Due to Proparco (i) 19,841 19,968
60,566 -

Due to African Development Bank (ifl)
On-lending facilities from financial institutions {iv) 52,858 53,728

Borrowing from correspondence banks (v) 35,739 9,119
398,877 316,792

The Group has not had any default of principal, interest or other breaches with respect to its liabilities during the period (2016: Nif).

FBN Eurobond:

Facilities represent doliar notes | and 11 issued by FBN Finance Company B.V, Netherlands on 7 August 2013 and on 18 July 2014 for a period of 7 years.
The notes | bear interest at 8.25% per annum up to the bank call date of 7 August 2018,while notes !l bear interest at 8.00% per annum to the bank call
date of 23 July 2019. From the call date up to the maturity date, the notes | and !l bear interest at a fixed rate of 6.875% and 6.488% per annum
respectively plus the prevailing mid swap rate for United States Dollar swap transactions with a maturity of 2 years. The loans are redeemable, subject to
having obtained the prior approval of the CBN, on the Bank call date of 7 August 2018 and of 23 July 2018, and not in part at the option of the issuer, at the
liquidation preference amount plus any additional amounts and outstanding payments due,

Due to Proparco:
Facility represents a long-term loan secured from Proparco on 16 May 2016 for a period of 8 years. The loan bears interest at the rate of 5.78% per annum.

Due to African Development Bank:
Facility represents a long-term loan secured from African Development Bank in January 2017 for a period of 4 years, The loan bears interest at the rate of

LIBOR +3.5% per annum.

On-lending Facilities:
Included in on-lending facilities from financial institutions are disbursements from other banks and Financial Institutions which are guaranteed by First Bank

of Nigeria for specific customers. These facilities include the BOI funds and CACS intervention funds. See further notes below.

CBN/BOI facilities :

The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN), in a bid to unfock the credit market, approved the investment of N200 billion debenture stock to be issued by the Bank
of industry (BOY), which would be applied to the re-financing/restructuring of bank's loans to the manufacturing sector. During the year, there was no
additional disbursement by Bank of Industry (BOI) (2016: Nil) to First Bank of Nigeria Limited. The fund disbursed is for a period of 15 years effective from
the disbursement date at an interest rate is 7% per annum.

CBN/CACS Intervention funds

The Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) in collaboration with the Federal Govemment of Nigeria (FGN) represented by the Federal Ministry of Agricuiture and
Water Resources (FMA & WR) established the Commercial Agricuitural Credit Scheme (CACS). During the year, there was no additional disbursement to
First Bank Nigeria Limited (2016; N5.8 billion) for on-lending to customers as specified by the guidelines. Loans granted under the scheme are for a seven

year period at an interest rate of % p.a.

Borrowings from correspondence Banks:
Borrowings from correspondence banks include loans from foreign banks utilised in funding letters of credits for intermational trade.
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it benefit obligati
GROUP
30 Septemb D b

2017 2016
N ‘miition N ‘million
Defined Contribution Plan - 6

Defined Benefits Plan
Gratuity Scheme (i) - 8
Defined benefits - Pension (if) 2,484 1,934
Gratuity Scheme (iil) 785 714
3,269 2,662

Gratuity scheme (i}

This relates to the schemes operated by FBN Insurance Brokers as a non-contributory defined gratuity scheme whereby on separation, staff who have
spent a minimum number of 5 years are paid a sum based on their qualifying emoluments and the number of periods spent in service of the entity.

Defined benefit - Pension (i)
First Bank of Nigeria Limited has an old Defined Bensfit scheme, discontinued in March 2001, The funds are placed with fund managers and the Bank is

under obligation to fund the deficit.

In addition, First Pensions Custodian Nigeria Limited (FPCNL), a direct subsidiary of First Bank of Nigeria Limited, has a non-contributory defined gratuity
scheme for directors. Directors are paid a sum based on an approved scale and the number of years in service subject to a maximum of 9 years.

Gratuity scheme (ifi)

This relates to the schemes operated by the subsidiaries of First Bank of Nigeria Limited as follows:

FBN Bank Congo (DRC) has a scheme whereby on separation, staff who have spent a minimum of 3 years are paid a sum based on their qualifying
emoluments and the number of periods spent in service of the Bank. "FBN mortgages provide gratuity benefit to eligible staff who are confirmed and have
spent minimum of § years and for Directors who have spent minimum of 2 years.

FBN Bank Guinea and FBN Bank Sierra LLeone each have a graduated gratuity scheme for staff on separation where staff receives a {ump sum based on
their qualifying basic salaries on the number of year spent.

Other labilities GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemb 31 D b 30 Sey & 31D b
2017 2018 2017 2016
N ‘million N 'million N ‘mitiion N "miition
Financial Liabilities:

Customer deposits for letters of credit 87,552 112,492 - -
Accounts payable 41,351 39,385 - -
Creditors 22,315 17,660 143 237
Bank cheques 18,732 12,426 - -
Coliection on behalf of third parties 10,210 5,772 - -
Unclaimed dividend 6,342 5,812 6,342 5812
Provisions and accruals 38,948 41,841 133 1,065
225,450 235,388 6,618 7,114

Other fiabilities are expected to be settled within no more than 12 months after the date of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Liability on investment contracts GROUP
30 September 31 December
2017 20186
N ‘milfion N ‘million
Long term clients 9,642 9,440
Short term clients 2,364 -
12,006 9,440
Cutrent 2,364 -
Non-current 9,642 9,440
12,006 9,440
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Share capital

30 Septemb 3D b
Authorised 2017 2016
50 bilion ordinary shares of 50k each (2016: 50 bilfion) 25,000 25,000

Issued and fully paid

Movements during the period: Number of Share
shares capitat

In million N ‘million

At 30 September 2017 35,895 17,948
At 31 December 2016 35,895 17,948

Share premium and reserves
The nature and purpose of the reserves in equity are as follows:

Share premium: Premiums (i.e. excess over nominal value) from the issue of shares are reported in share premium.

Retained earnings: Retained eamings comprise the undistributed profits from previous years, which have not been reclassified to the other reserves
noted below.

Statutory reserve: Nigerian banking reguations require banks to make an annual appropriation to a statutory reserve. As stipulated by S516(1) of the Bank
and Other Financial Institutions Act of 1891(amended), an appropriation of 30% of profit after tax is made if the statutory reserve is less than the paid-up
share capital and 15% of profit after tax if the statutory reserve is greater than the paid-up share capital.

Capita! reserve: Reserve arising from business restructuring

Available for Sale (AFS) Fair value reserve: The AFS fair value reserve shows the effects of the fair value measurement of financial instruments
classified as available for sale presented in other comprehensive income. No gains or losses are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

§81 reserve: This reserve is maintained to comply with the Central Bank of Nigeria (CBN) requirement that all licensed banks set aside a portion of the
profit after tax in a fund to be used to finance equity investments in qualifying small and medium-scale enterprises. Under the terms of the guideline
(amended by CBN letter dated 11 July 2006), the contributions will be 10% of profit after tax and shall continue after the first five years but banks'
contributions shali thereafter reduce to 5% of profit after tax. However, this is no longer mandatory.

in 2017, the CBN mandated Deposit Money Banks to set aside 5% of their profit after tax into the Agri-Business/Small and Medium Enterprises investment

Scheme (AGSMEIS) for financing equity investment in qualifying agricultural SMEs.
The small and medium-scale industries equity investment scheme reserves are non-distributable.

Contingency reserve: As required by insurance regulations, a contingency reserve is maintained for both the non-life insurance and life assurance
contracts underwritten by the Group. The appropriation to contingency reserve for non-life underwriting contracts is calculated in accordance with section
21(2) and 22(1){b) of the Insurance Act 2003. The reserve is calculated at the higher of 3% of gross premiums and 20% of net profits of the business for
the year. The appropriation to contingency reserve for fife underwriting contracts is calculated at the higher of 1% of the gross premium and 10% of net
profits of the business for the year. The appropriations are charged to the Life Fund.

Statutory credit reserve: The group determines its loan loss provisions based on the requirements of IFRS, The difference between the loan loss
provision as determined under IFRS and the provision as determined under Nigerian Prudential guidefine (as prescribed by the Central Bank of Nigeria) is
recorded in this reserve. This reserve is non distributable.

Forelgn currency translation reserve (FCTR): Records exchange movements on the Group's net investment in foreign subsidiaries.
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GROUP COMPANY
30 Sef & 30 Septemt 30 September 30 Septemb
2017 2016 2017 2016

N ‘miltion N ‘million N 'million N ‘miltion
Profit before tax from continuing operations 55,433 57,455 {780) (460)
Loss before tax from discontinued operations {837)
Profit before tax from including discontinued operations 54,506 57,455 (780) (460)
Adjustments for:
- Depreciation and amortisation 11,581 11,021 297 281
- (Profit)fioss from disposal of property and equipment (83) 41 - -
- Foreign exchange gains (846) 75,475 - -
- Net (gains)losses from investment securities {835) (4,402) {15) 12
— Net gains from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss {8,598) (3,282) - -
— impairment on loans and advances 101,285 116,662 - -
- Change in retirement benefit obligations 607 116 - -
- Share of profit from associates {256) - - -
- Dividend income (1,986) (846) - (1,259)
- Interest income {356,076) (278,577) (1,681) (540)
- Interest expense 101,731 75,666 - -
{Increase)/decrease in operating assets:
-~ Cash and balances with the Central Bank (restricted cash} 100,331 {78,338) - -
- Inventories - {363) - -
- Loans and advances to banks 58,130 19,746 - -
- Loans and advances to customers (57,084) {508,501) - -
— Financial assets at fair value through profit or joss 10,194 (38,187) - -
- Other assets (11.664) 4,350 19 {189)
-~ Pledged assets 99,354 18,938 - -
~ Assets held for sale 921 570 - -
Increase/(decrease) in operating liabilities:
- Deposits from banks 180,595 233,117 - -
~ Deposits from customers {166,821) 325,247 - -
— Financial liabilities (30,416) 18,085 - -
- Liability on investment contracts 2,566 9,261 - -
- Liability on insurance contracts 7.124 2,069 - -
- Liabitity heid for sale 205 - - -
- Other liabilities 51,142 135,610 {658) 970
Cash flow used in operations 155,687 189,955 (2,818) {1,195)
Comp with reg
During the year, the Company paid penalty of N1.65million to the Securities and Exchange Commission for late submission of audited financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2016.

Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the period, excluding the average number of ordinary shares purchased by the members of the group and held as treasury shares.

The company does not have potential ordinary shares with convertible options and therefore there is no dilutive impact on the profit attributable to the equity
holders of the parent.

GROUP COMPANY
30 Septemt 30 Septemb 30 September 30 Septemb

2017 2016 2017 2018

N 'mitlion N ‘million N 'miflion N 'million

Profit/(loss) from continuing operations attributable to owners of the 44,994 41,970 {820) (480}
parent (N'million)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in million) 35,895 35,895 35,895 35,895

Basic/diluted eamings per share (expressed in naira per share) 1.25 1.17 {0.02) (0.01)

Profit from discontinued operations attributable to owners of the {837) - - -
parent (N'miltion)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (in million) 35,895 35,895 35,885 35,895

Basic/diluted eamings per share (expressed in Kobo per share) (0.02) - - -
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